
Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 1 

Meeting 
of the 

Iron Range Resources Board 
 
 

Monday, October 27, 2008 
10:00 a.m. 

Iron Range Resources  
Eveleth, MN 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 2 

MEETING OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES BOARD 
Monday, October 27, 2008 

10:00 a.m. 
 
 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
AGENDA ...................................................................................................................................................................... 3 
APPROVAL OF THE SEPTEMBER 23, 2008, MINUTES .................................................................................... 4 
IRON RANGE HIGHER EDUCATION ACCOUNT ............................................................................................ 16 

IRON RANGE HIGHER EDUCATION COMMITTEE EXPENDITURES .............................................................................. 17 
TACONITE AREA ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION FUND ....................................................................... 19 

RESIDENTIAL COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT PROGRAM EXTENSION ..................................................................... 20 
DOUGLAS J. JOHNSON ECONOMIC PROTECTION TRUST FUND ............................................................ 21 

MAGNETATION, INC................................................................................................................................................. 22 
AMERICAN PEAT TECHNOLOGY, LLC ..................................................................................................................... 27 

TACONITE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND ............................................................................................ 30 
HIBBING TACONITE COMPANY ................................................................................................................................ 31 
NORTHSHORE MINING COMPANY ............................................................................................................................ 35 

 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 3 

MEETING OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES BOARD 
Iron Range Resources 

Eveleth, Minnesota 
Monday, October 27, 2008 – 10:00 a.m. 

 
Agenda 

 
1) Roll Call 
 
2) Approval of the September 23, 2008, Minutes 
 
3) Commissioner’s Comments 
 
4) Iron Range Higher Education Account 

Action required:  Project approval requires a majority vote of the quorum present 
a) Iron Range Higher Education Committee Expenditures  
 

5) Taconite Area Environmental Protection Fund 
Action required:  Project approval requires 7 votes 

a) Residential Community Redevelopment Program Extension  
  
6) Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund  

Action required:  Project approval requires 8 votes 
a) Magnetation, Inc. 
b) American Peat Technologies, LLC  

 
7) Taconite Economic Development Fund 

Action required:  Project approval requires a majority vote of the quorum present 
a) Hibbing Taconite Company  
b) Northshore Mining Company 
 

8) Other 
a) Next meeting of the Iron Range Resources Board – November 24, 2008, 2:00 p.m. 

 
9) Adjournment 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 4 

Approval of the September 23, 2008, Minutes 
 

Meeting of the 
Iron Range Resources Board 

 
Tuesday, September 23, 2008 

10:00 a.m. 
Iron Range Resources  

Eveleth, Minnesota 
 

I. Roll Call 
 
Representative David Dill, Chair, called the meeting to order at approximately 10:00 a.m.  
Present:  Representative Tom Anzelc, Representative Tom Rukavina, Representative Tony 
Sertich, Representative Loren Solberg, Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David 
Tomassoni, Citizen Joe Begich, Citizen Shelley Robinson and Citizen Jack Ryan.  Absent:  
Senator Tom Bakk, Senator Tom Saxhaug and Senator Rod Skoe.  Also present:  Sandy Layman, 
Commissioner; Brian Hiti, Deputy Commissioner; Doug Gregor, Assistant Attorney General; 
Matt Sjoberg, Development Strategies Director; Roy Smith, Workforce Development 
Coordinator; Dan Jordan, Mining Program Supervisor; Jean Dolensek, Chief Financial Officer; 
Marianne Bouska, Human Resources & Strategic Results Manager; Dave Hart, Loan Officer Sr. 
Supervisor; Rick Anderson, Loan Officer Sr.; Sheryl Kochevar, Communications & Media 
Coordinator; Laureen Hall, Executive Assistant; Kim Anderson, Executive Assistant; Todd 
Smrekar, Principal, Renewafuels, LLC; Denny Moen, President, Northshore Manufacturing, Inc. 
 
II. Approval of the August 28, 2008, Minutes 
 
Representative Tom Rukavina moved approval of the August 28, 2008, minutes.  Seconded by 
Citizen Jack Ryan.  Motion carried. 
 
III. Commissioner’s Comments 
 

a. Business Development Update 
 

Commissioner Sandy Layman provided the Board with an update regarding business 
development activities.  
  
IV.   Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund 

Action required:  Project approval requires 8 votes 
 
a. Northshore Manufacturing, Inc. 

  
Motion by Representative Tom Rukavina to approve the Northshore Manufacturing, Inc. project, 
as presented, for an amount not to exceed $500,000.  Seconded by Citizen Shelley Robinson.  
Motion carried.  
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 5 

Voting in Favor of the Motion:  Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David Tomassoni, 
Representative Tom Anzelc, Representative David Dill, Representative Tom Rukavina, 
Representative Tony Sertich,  Representative Loren Solberg, Citizen Joe Begich, Citizen Shelley 
Robinson and Citizen Jack Ryan 
 
Voting Against the Motion:  None 
 
Abstain:  None 
 
Absent: Senator Tom Bakk, Senator Tom Saxhaug, Senator Rod Skoe 
 
V. Commercial Building Renovation Grant Program 

Action required:  Discussion only 
 
Commissioner Layman discussed the Commercial Building Renovation Grant Program.  The 
Commissioner has proposed that the program be renewed and expanded from a similar program 
offered by the agency in the 1990s.  Local communities, several of which have diminished loan 
funds that they would like to have replenished, have expressed an interest in renewing the 
program.  After discussion with staff and Economic Development Liaison Group members, 
guidelines have been developed.  After Board input at today’s meeting, Commissioner Layman 
said the intent was to send out the guidelines and solicit applications. 
 
Chairman Dill and Representative Rukavina applauded the work of staff on the program; 
however, they asked that further discussion take place at an Economic Development Liaison 
Group meeting prior to distribution of the guidelines and solicitation of applications.  

 
VI. Taconite Economic Development Fund (TEDF) 

Action required:  project approval requires a majority vote of the quorum present 
 

a. Renewafuel, LLC – Resolution No. 09-007 
 
Motion by Representative Tom Anzelc to approve the Renewafuel, LLC project, which includes 
the construction of a biomass facility to be located within the Taconite Assistance Area, as 
presented in Resolution No. 09-007, and to include the prevailing wage provision as outlined in 
Resolution No. 96-005, for an amount not to exceed $3,882,294.  Seconded by Citizen Jack 
Ryan.  Motion carried. 
 
Voting in Favor of the Motion:  Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David Tomassoni, 
Representative Tom Anzelc, Representative David Dill, Representative Tom Rukavina, 
Representative Tony Sertich,  Representative Loren Solberg, Citizen Joe Begich, Citizen Shelley 
Robinson and Citizen Jack Ryan 
 
Voting Against the Motion:  None 
 
Abstain:  None 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 6 

Absent: Senator Tom Bakk, Senator Tom Saxhaug, Senator Rod Skoe 
 

IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND REHABILITATION BOARD 
OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA 

RENEWAFUEL, LLC PROJECT APPROVAL 
 
Resolution No.: 09-007 
 
WHEREAS, the Commissioner is authorized to expend, upon approval of the Board, the Biomass Loan 
Fund monies made available under Minnesota Statutes Section 298.227, Paragraph (b) (“Biomass Loan 
Funds”) to make a loan to provide funds for the construction of a biomass energy facility to be located 
within the Taconite Assistance Area designated in Minnesota Statutes Section 273.1341 (“TAA”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the agency has available in the said Biomass Loan Fund account a current balance of 
$3,882,294; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commissioner has received a request from Renewafuel, LLC for a loan in the amount of 
$3,882,294 to provide funds for a project that it is proposing to undertake to construct a 100,000 square 
foot biomass briquette production facility within the TAA near Orr, Minnesota, as such project is more 
specifically described in the packet of materials and comments that have been provided to the Board 
(“Renewafuel Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board met in open session at 10:00 a.m. on September 23, 2008, in the Board Room 
located near Eveleth, Minnesota, to consider, among other matters, the proposed Renewafuel Project and 
has determined that the expenditure of $3,882,294 of Biomass Loan Funds for the proposed Renewafuel 
Project would be in the public interest and promote economic development within the TAA. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED, that the Board hereby approves the expenditure of up to 
$3,882,294 of Biomass Loan Funds for the purpose of making a loan to Renewafuel, LLC for the 
company’s proposed Renewafuel Project.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board’s approval for the expenditure of Biomass Loan Funds 
for the Renewafuel Project is contingent upon the agency, in its loan agreement, requiring the borrower, 
Renewafuel, LLC, to commit to the payment of prevailing wages for the funded project as indicated in, 
and to the extent required in, the Board’s Resolution 96-005. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 7 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY VOTE OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND 
REHABILITATION BOARD THIS 23rd DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2008. 
 

Member Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Senator Tom Bakk    X 
Senator Tom Saxhaug    X 
Senator Rod Skoe    X 
Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon X    
Senator Dave Tomassoni X    
Representative Tom Anzelc X    
Representative Dave Dill X    
Representative Tom Rukavina X    
Representative Tony Sertich X    
Representative Loren Solberg X    
Citizen Joe Begich X    
Citizen Shelley Robinson X    
Citizen Jack Ryan X    
TOTAL 10 0 0 3 

 
Signed:__________________________ 

Representative David Dill, Chair 
 

b. Northshore Mining Company – Resolution No. 09-005 
c. Hibbing Taconite Company – Resolution No. 09-006  
 

Chairman Dill discussed the Northshore Mining Company and Hibbing Taconite Company 
TEDF grants, which had been laid on the table at the June 19, 2008, Board meeting.  He asked if 
there was a motion to remove the projects from the table.  Following discussion of alternative 
types of TEDF projects that might address current challenges facing the industry, no action was 
taken on Resolution No. 09-005 and No. 09-006.    
 
VII. Taconite Area Environmental Protection Fund 

Action required:  Approval requires 7 votes 
 

a. Ironworld Leadership Grant – Resolution No. 09-003 
 
Motion by Representative Loren Solberg to approve the Ironworld Leadership Grant, which will 
enable the Ironworld Development Corporation to hire necessary staff and begin fundraising 
activities in accordance with its business and fundraising plans, as presented in Resolution No. 
09-003, not to exceed $250,000.  Seconded by Senator David Tomassoni.  Motion carried.  
 
Voting in Favor of the Motion:  Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David Tomassoni, 
Representative Tom Anzelc, Representative David Dill, Representative Tom Rukavina, 
Representative Tony Sertich,  Representative Loren Solberg, Citizen Joe Begich, Citizen Shelley 
Robinson and Citizen Jack Ryan 
 
Voting Against the Motion:  None 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 8 

Abstain:  None 
 
Absent: Senator Tom Bakk, Senator Tom Saxhaug, Senator Rod Skoe 
 

 
IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND REHABILITATION BOARD 

OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 
Resolution No.:  09-003 
 
WHEREAS, on August 18, 2005, the Board approved Resolution No. 06-001 and authorized the 
Agency to place $10,000,000 into an endowment for the Ironworld Development Corporation 
(“IDC”); and  
 
WHEREAS, on September 11, 2006, the Board approved the Ironworld Lease/Management 
Agreement Term Sheet (“Term Sheet”), which included a $10,000,000 endowment plus interest 
from February 2, 2006 (“Endowment”) and an endowment challenge match of up to $250,000 a 
year for five years (“Endowment Match”), beginning in FY 2007 and concluding in FY 2011; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board approved Resolution No. 07-002, which authorized the Commissioner of 
Iron Range Resources to release the Endowment and Endowment Match to the IDC subject to 
certain conditions specified in the Resolution; and  
 
WHEREAS, the IDC has been involved with planning, board development and improvements to 
develop and implement a new operating model for Ironworld since approval of Resolution No. 
07-002, and has refined its business and fundraising plans and is ready to recruit individuals with 
the skills necessary to achieve its operational, fundraising and financial goals; and 
 
WHEREAS, no significant Endowment Match funds have been released to date; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board believes it is critical to provide the IDC with funds to enable it to hire 
necessary staff and begin fundraising activities in accordance with its business and fundraising 
plans. 

 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Commissioner of Iron Range Resources 
(the “Commissioner”) is authorized to waive conditions precedent and release the FY 07 
Endowment Match amount of $250,000 to IDC for the purpose of recruiting and hiring a CEO 
and a grant writer and conducting strategic planning, fundraising and other related activities.  
Subsequent Endowment Match amounts are subject to prior conditions before release as 
established in Resolution 07-002. 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 9 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY VOTE OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND 
REHABILITATION BOARD THIS 23rd DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2008. 
 

Member Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Senator Tom Bakk    X 
Senator Tom Saxhaug    X 
Senator Rod Skoe    X 
Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon X    
Senator Dave Tomassoni X    
Representative Tom Anzelc X    
Representative Dave Dill X    
Representative Tom Rukavina X    
Representative Tony Sertich X    
Representative Loren Solberg X    
Citizen Joe Begich X    
Citizen Shelley Robinson X    
Citizen Jack Ryan X    
TOTAL 10 0 0 3 

 
 
Signed:__________________________ 

Representative David Dill, Chair 
 

 
b. Public Works Infrastructure Grants – Resolution No. 09-004 
c. Community Business Infrastructure Grant – Resolution No. 09-004 

 
Motion by Representative Tom Rukavina to approve the Public Works Infrastructure and 
Community Business Infrastructure Grants as presented in Resolution No. 09-004, except to 
delete #4. City of Biwabik, $120,000 for a 27-unit housing project, under Public Works Fund 
Grants on Page 3, Exhibit A, of Resolution No. 09-004.  Seconded by Senator David Tomassoni.  
Motion carried. 
 
Voting in Favor of the Motion:  Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon, Senator David Tomassoni, 
Representative Tom Anzelc, Representative David Dill, Representative Tom Rukavina, 
Representative Tony Sertich,  Representative Loren Solberg, Citizen Joe Begich, Citizen Shelley 
Robinson and Citizen Jack Ryan 
 
Voting Against the Motion:  None 
 
Abstain:  None 
 
Absent: Senator Tom Bakk, Senator Tom Saxhaug, Senator Rod Skoe 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 10 

 
IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND REHABILITATION BOARD 

OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA 
BUSINESS INFRASTRUCTURE AND PUBLIC WORKS PROJECT APPROVALS 

 
Resolution No.: 09-004 
 
WHEREAS, the Commissioner is authorized to expend, upon approval of a majority vote of the 
members of the Board, the Taconite Area Environmental Protection Fund monies made available 
under Minnesota Statutes Section 298.223 (“TEPF Funds”) to promote the economic 
development of the Taconite Assistance Area designated in Minnesota Statutes Section 273.1341 
(“TAA”), by investing in local economic development projects within the TAA; and 
 
WHEREAS, the agency’s approved FY 2009 Budget includes the allocation of $1,000,000 of 
TEPF Funds for Community Business Infrastructure grants (“Business Infrastructure Funds”) 
and the allocation of $4,656,041 of TEPF Funds for Public Works grants (“Public Works 
Funds”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Commissioner has received proposals for the expenditure of portions of such 
TEPF Funds for certain local economic development projects as more specifically described in 
Items 1-23 in Exhibit A, which is attached hereto and incorporated by reference (“Commissioner 
Proposed Projects”); and 
 
WHEREAS, in addition to the list of Commissioner Proposed Projects the Board considered the 
proposed project (the “Board Proposed Project”) for the expenditure of $250,000 of Public 
Works Funds for the Bois Forte housing infrastructure project listed as Item 24 in Exhibit A 
(which Commissioner Proposed Projects and Board Proposed Project are collectively referenced 
as the “Proposed Projects” and amount, in total, to the sum of $4,780,000 of TEPF Funds); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board met in open session at 10:00 a.m. on September 23, 2008, in the Board 
Room located near Eveleth, Minnesota, to consider, among other matters, the Proposed Projects 
and has determined that the expenditure of the following amounts of TEPF Funds for the 
purposes and in the amounts specified below would be in the public interest and promote 
economic development within the Taconite Assistance Area; and 
 
WHEREAS, in order to best provide the funding for the Proposed Projects it is approving, the 
Board has determined that it is appropriate to modify the approved agency’s FY09 Budget by 
transferring $250,000 from the Business Infrastructure Funds line item into the Public Works 
Fund line item, thereby increasing the Public Works Fund budget line item to the sum of 
$4,906,041. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS RESOLVED, that the Board hereby approves the modification of 
the approved FY09 Budget to transfer $250,000 of Business Infrastructure Funds into the Public 
Works Fund line item portion of the approved budget, thereby increasing the Public Works Fund 
budget line item to the sum of $4,906,041. 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 11 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board approves the expenditure of TEPF Funds to 
provide grants for the Proposed Projects in the amounts and for the purposes set forth in Exhibit 
A. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board’s approval for the expenditure of TEPF Funds 
for those Proposed Projects that have concurrent commercial or housing construction is 
contingent upon the agency, in its grant contracts, requiring each such grantee entity to commit 
to the payment of prevailing wages for the funded project as indicated in, and to the extent 
required in, the Board’s Resolution 96-005. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Board’s approval for the expenditure of TEPF Funds 
for those Proposed Projects for which a developer or benefiting business is involved, is further 
contingent upon receipt by the agency of a final, approved development agreement between each 
such grantee entity and the associated project developer or benefiting business. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY VOTE OF THE IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND 
REHABILITATION BOARD THIS 23rd DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2008. 
 

Member Aye Nay Abstain Absent 
Senator Tom Bakk    X 
Senator Tom Saxhaug    X 
Senator Rod Skoe    X 
Senator Yvonne Prettner Solon X    
Senator Dave Tomassoni X    
Representative Tom Anzelc X    
Representative Dave Dill X    
Representative Tom Rukavina X    
Representative Tony Sertich X    
Representative Loren Solberg X    
Citizen Joe Begich X    
Citizen Shelley Robinson X    
Citizen Jack Ryan X    
TOTAL 10 0 0 3 

 
 
Signed:__________________________ 

Representative David Dill, Chair 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 12 

IRON RANGE RESOURCES AND REHABILITATION BOARD 
OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA 

BUSINESS INFRASTRUCTURE AND PUBLIC WORKS PROJECT APPROVALS 
 
Resolution No.: 09-004 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 
Business Infrastructure Fund Grants: 
 
1. City of Bigfork 
Reconstruction and Extension of Airport Runway 
Grant Amount:  $150,000 
The grant is to assist with the reconstruction and extension of the airport runway.  The airport is 
used by the Berguist Company and for medical evacuations and small plane traffic.   
 
Public Works Fund Grants: 
 
2. City of Aurora 
Waste Treatment Plant Upgrades 
Grant amount:  $250,000 
The grant is for upgrades to the waste treatment plant to help the City meet MPCA requirements 
to eliminate significant overflows during wet weather.     
 
3. City of Biwabik 
Housing Project Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $60,000 
The grant will be used for water, sewer, roads and site work for a 6 unit single family housing 
project. 
 
4. City of Biwabik 
Giant Ridge Cottages Project Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $120,000 
The grant will be used for water, sewer, roads and site work for a 27 unit Cottages housing 
project at Giants Ridge®. 

 
4. City of Bovey 
Housing Project Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $200,000 
The grant will be used for water, sewer, roads and site work for a 13 unit single family housing 
project.   
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 13 

5. City of Buhl 
Frantz Street Reconstruction and Sewer Improvements 
Grant Amount:  $200,000 
The grant will be used for sanitary sewer improvements and the reconstruction of Frantz Street, 
which accesses the city’s senior center, public library, and city hall.  
 
6. City of Calumet 
Housing Project Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $200,000 
The grant will be used for water, sewer, roads and site work for a 20 unit single family housing 
project.   
 
7. City of Chisholm 
Housing Project Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $240,000 
The grant will be used for water, sewer, roads and site work for a 16 unit single family housing 
project.   
 
8. City of Cook 
Relocation and Replacement of Water System  
Grant Amount:  $280,000 
The grant will assist the city to relocate and replace its wells and water plant pursuant to a 
directive from the Minnesota Department of Health.  
 
9. City of Eveleth 
Replacement of Water, Sewer and Roads 
Grant Amount:  $200,000 
The grant will assist the city with replacing water, sewer and roads in the 17th Avenue area, 
Cleveland Street and North Norman block area pursuant to a directive from the Minnesota 
Pollution Control Agency to replace these lines and eliminate inflow and infiltration.   
 
10. City of Eveleth 
Grant Amount:  $150,000 
The grant will assist with water, sewer and utility relocation and site work for the Mesabi Station 
trail head building.  
 
11. Fayal Township 
Water Line Extensions 
Grant Amount:  $100,000 
The grant will assist with water line extensions to the south shore of Ely Lake for 18 existing 
residences and 5 lots for single family housing.   
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 14 

12. City of Gilbert 
Housing Project Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $200,000 
The grant will be used for water, sewer, roads and site work for a 16 unit single family housing 
project.   
 
13. City of Grand Rapids 
Retail Project Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $300,000 
The grant will be used for water, sewer, roads and site work in the south airport industrial park to 
serve new retail development.   
 
14. City of Hibbing 
Housing Project Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $350,000 
The grant will be used for water, sewer, roads and site work for a 50-55 unit single family 
housing development.  
 
15. City of Hibbing 
Senior Housing Complex Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $250,000 
The grant will be used for water, sewer, roads and site work for a 28 unit senior housing 
complex.  
 
16. City of Hoyt Lakes 
Housing Project Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $300,000 
The grant will be used for storm sewer replacement, street lights, and a gas line for a 25 unit 
single family housing project.   
 
17. City of Keewatin 
Housing Project Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $290,000 
The grant will be used for water, sewer, roads and site work for a 20 unit single family housing 
project which has the potential for 30-40 total housing lots.   
 
18. Lutsen Township 
Infrastructure Improvements 
Grant Amount:  $100,000 
The grant will be used for infrastructure improvements at the Superior National Golf Course.   
 
19. City of McKinley 
Housing Project Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $100,000 
The grant will be used for storm sewer road improvements for 5 single family lots.   



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 15 

20. City of Mountain Iron 
Renewable Energy Park Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $300,000 
The grant will be used for water, sewer, roads and site work for a renewable energy park located 
on the east and west side of County Road 102.   
 
21. City of Mountain Iron 
Housing Project Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $100,000 
The grant will be used for water, sewer, roads, and site work for a 19 unit single family housing 
project in the South Grove neighborhood.   
 
22. City of Orr 
Housing Project Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $60,000 
The grant will assist with replacing water lines on Moose Lake and Pine Drive streets, which will 
help provide infrastructure for 10 housing lots.  
 
23. City of Virginia 
P&H Mine Pro Infrastructure 
Grant Amount:  $300,000 
The grant will be used for water, sewer, roads and site work for a business park on Highway 53 
for the P & H Mine Pro project.  This infrastructure will also support future development on the 
north and south side of Inland Haul Road.  
 
24. Bois Forte Tribal Council 
Duplex Housing Project Infrastructure 
Grant Amount: $ 250,000 
The grant will be used for water, sewer, roads and/or site work associated with a 36-unit duplex 
lot housing project which grantee will construct in the vicinity of the existing convention center 
at Fortune Bay. 
 
VIII. Adjournment  
 
Meeting adjourned at 10:55 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 16 

Iron Range Higher Education Account 
Action required:  Project approval requires a majority vote of the quorum present 

 
 

a) Iron Range Higher Education Committee Expenditures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 17 

Iron Range Higher Education Committee Expenditures 
 
 
 

Iron Range Resources 
P.O. Box 441 

4261 Highway 53 South 
Eveleth, Minnesota 55734-0441 
(218) 744-7400 • 800-765-5043 

Fax: (218)744-7403 
 

 
To: Sandy Layman 
 Commissioner 
 
From: Roy Smith 
 Workforce Development Coordinator 
 
Date: October 11, 2012 
 
Re: Iron Range Higher Education Committee Expenditures 
 
 
REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP) 
 
The Iron Range Higher Education Committee requests the expenditure of funds in an amount not 
to exceed $100,000 for consulting services to work with the Iron Range Higher Education 
Committee to develop a comprehensive plan to address higher education needs in Northeast 
Minnesota, specifically the Taconite Assistance Area defined in M.S. 273.1341. 
 
The Iron Range Higher Education Committee is a legislatively created committee defined in 
M.S. 298.2214 that is charged to advise the Commissioner of Iron Range Resources on providing 
higher education programs in the Taconite Assistance Area.   The committee is comprised of 
four Iron Range Resources and Rehabilitation Board Members appointed by the Chair, the 
Commissioner of Iron Range Resources and Rehabilitation, the President of the Northeast 
Higher Education District, one member appointed by the President of the University of 
Minnesota and one member appointed by the Governor. 
 
The scope of services for the consulting contract will include but not be limited to the following: 
 
 Consultant will develop a comprehensive plan to deliver technical, pre-professional, 

undergraduate and graduate educational offerings to fill the “gaps” that exist within the 
current educational offerings based upon research and needs assessment activities. 
 

 Consultant will include in the plan customized training opportunities to be offered to 
address the needs of incumbent workers, unemployed adults, underemployed adults, adult 
basic education clients and youth.   
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 18 

 Consultant will align programming efforts with the curriculum development and 
programming work of the Applied Learning Institute.   
 

 Consultant will include in the plan a budget, which will identify the resources, both 
human and financial, that are required to deliver the plan. 
 

 Consultant will coordinate planning activities with Iron Range Higher Education 
Committee and other stakeholders. 

 
 Consultant will report and regularly communicate with the Iron Range Higher Education 

Committee regarding the status of the project as requested by the committee and will 
aggressively communicate with business and industry contacts in the region to assure that 
programming recommendations align with the needs of business and industry.  
 

 Consultant will interface with the members of the Joint Iron Range Task Force to 
integrate planning efforts and ensure no duplication or redundancy of effort. 
 

It is anticipated that consultant evaluation and selection will be completed by December 31, 
2008, and that the contract will run through December 31, 2009. 
 
COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES 
 
In addition, approval is requested for up to $10,000 in FY09 for compensation and expenses of 
the committee, as authorized by M.S. 298.2214 and 15.059, subdivision 3. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 19 

Taconite Area Environmental Protection Fund 
Action required:  Project approval requires 7 votes 

 
 

a) Residential Community Redevelopment Program Extension  



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 20 

Residential Community Redevelopment Program Extension 

To:  Sandy Layman 
 Commissioner 

From:  Dan Jordan 
 Mining Programs Supervisor 

Date:  October 21, 2008 

Re:  RESIDENTIAL COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT PROGRAM - $34,000 

 

The Residential Community Re-Development Program was re-established in 2007 for the 
purpose of removing blight in the form of dilapidated structures, primarily houses and garages, 
from noncommercial properties; thereby encouraging development within Taconite Assistance 
Area communities.  The Iron Range Resources Board approved a FY09 budget allocation of 
$199,387 to operate the program from July – November 2008 and May – June 2009.   
 
Demand for the program has continued to increase and the Agency has received requests for 
demolition of residential structures that need to be completed prior to January 1, 2009.  There is 
not time to address these requests prior to the November 25, 2008, scheduled end date for this 
season.  Therefore, I am seeking authorization and additional funding to extend the program one 
month to permit us to respond to the requests.   
 
It’s projected that $34,000 will be necessary to extend the program for four additional weeks, 
which breaks down as follows: 
 
  Salaries     $12,000    
  Backhoe Rental         4,000    
  Tires          4,000    
  Diesel Fuel         4,000    
  Miscellaneous supplies & repairs    10,000    
       TOTAL $34,000 

State of Minnesota 
Office Memorandum 

 
Mining & Reclamation                                                               
801 SW Highway 169, Suite 2 
Chisholm, MN  55719 
PHONE:  218-254-7967 
FAX :  218-254-7973 
 

 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 21 

Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund 
Action required:  Project approval requires 8 votes 

 
 

a) Magnetation, Inc. 
 
b) American Peat Technologies, LLC 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 22 

 
Magnetation, Inc. 

Direct Loan Program 
 

APPLICANT: 
Magnetation, Inc. 
 
PRINCIPAL(S):  
Larry Lehtinen, Al Fritz, Rod Hunt, Ed Shaughnessy, Tom Hammerlund, Sr., Gene Bergstrom 
 
BRIEF PROJECT DESCRIPTION:   
Magnetation, Inc. (MI), established in 2006, has further developed and refined a proprietary 
process to recover iron particles from existing natural iron ore and taconite tailings basins.  The 
base technology for this process was initially developed more than twenty years ago by Al Fritz, 
now a retired mining engineer and a co-founder and investor in the company.  In June of 2008, 
the Iron Range Resources board approved $2,000,000 of financing to assist MI with the 
development of its first processing line on a parcel of property located near Keewatin that is 
owned by the company and on which is located a natural ore tailings basin.  MI is requesting an 
additional $1,000,000 of financing from Iron Range Resources to purchase and construct a 
53,450 square foot fabric building at the Keewatin site.  The building will house the processing 
line and will allow MI to operate on a year-round basis. 
 
PROJECT COST:  $7,302,452 
 
PROJECT BREAKDOWN:   
Iron Range Resources Direct Loan (up to 5 year term, 3.00%)* $ 1,000,000 
Iron Range Resources Subordinated Loan (5 year term, 20.00%)* $ 1,000,000 
Iron Range Resources Subordinated Loan (5 years, 3.00%)** $ 1,000,000 
Minnesota Minerals 21st Century Fund Loan (up to 5 year term, 3.00%)*** $ 1,000,000 
Minnesota Minerals 21st Century Fund Grant*** $ 1,000,000 
American Bank of the North Working Capital Loan $    750,000 
Subordinated Loan Payable on Land Purchase (Shaughnessy) $    242,000 
Lake Country Power Loan $    100,000   
Equity $ 1,210,452 
Total $ 7,302,452 
 
*Approved at the Iron Range Resources Board meeting on June 19, 2008 
 
**Additional financing being requested to help MI finance the acquisition and construction of a portable fabric 
building and related equipment.  MI also will provide an additional1 royalty of $0.50 per dry metric tonne on the 
first 5,000,000 tonnes of concentrate processed and shipped by MI.    
 
***Administered by the Minnesota Department of Employment and Economic Development. 
 
                                                 
1 The $2 million financing approved on June 19, 2008, entitles Iron Range Resources and the Department of 
Employment and Economic Development to each receive a royalty of $1.00 per dry metric tonne, on all tonnes of 
concentrate processed and shipped by MI. 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 23 

COLLATERAL:   
The proposed $1,000,000 Subordinated Iron Range Resources Direct Loan will be subordinated 
to the existing Iron Range Resources direct loans and the Minnesota 21st Century Minerals Fund 
loan on the following collateral: 
 

1. A real estate mortgage on approximately 150 acres of land and the personal property 
located thereon (tailings).  This parcel contains an estimated 3,000,000 tons or more of 
recoverable iron concentrate. 

2. A lien on all equipment, machinery, furniture, buildings and other tangible personal 
property of MI, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, including but not limited to 
all present and future machinery, equipment, furniture, shop equipment, office and 
record keeping equipment, parts and tools and supplies. 

 
All general intangibles of MI, whether now owned or hereafter acquired, including, but not 
limited to, applications for patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, good will, trade 
names, customers lists, permits and franchises, and the right to use Debtor's. 
 
JOBS:   
Projections by the company indicate that approximately 49 full-time employees, including 23 
direct company employees and 26 contract employees, will be created within two years of the 
start of operations.      
 
CONTINGENCIES:   
MI must provide evidence that it has secured a Scram Mining Permit from the Minnesota 
Department of Natural Resources prior to closing. 
 
MI must provide evidence that it has secured State Disposal System and Industrial Stormwater 
permits from the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency prior to closing. 
 
MI must provide evidence, prior to the loan closing, that it has a signed contractual commitment 
with a recognized company to supply them with at least 100,000 dry tons of concentrate.   
  
Loan funds will be advanced upon receipt of invoices for the project, including machinery and 
equipment purchases, the building purchase, materials purchases, construction services, 
professional services provided and the building purchase and installation. 
 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS:   
Approved October 20, 2008 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 24 

FUNDING AUTHORIZATION:   
Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund:  This project is authorized under the 
provisions of the Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund Act (Minnesota Statutes 
sections 298.291-298.298) pertaining to expenditures of Douglas J. Johnson Economic 
Protection Trust Fund monies for economic development projects in that these statutes 
authorize small business development loans to private enterprises for the purposes of job 
creation and economic development within the Taconite Assistance Area defined in Minnesota 
Statutes Section 273.1341.   
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
Magnetation, Inc. (MI), established in 2006, has further developed and refined a proprietary 
process to recover iron particles from existing natural iron ore and taconite tailings basins.  
Tailings, a by-product of the iron mining process, contains particle-sized minerals, including iron 
particles, that have been discarded for decades in slurry form into impoundment basins by the 
mining industry.  The base technology for this process was initially developed more than twenty 
years ago by Al Fritz, now a retired mining engineer and a co-founder and investor in the 
company.  In June of 2008, the Iron Range Resources board approved $2,000,000 of financing to 
assist MI with the development of its first processing line on a parcel of property located near 
Keewatin that is owned by the company and on which is located a natural ore tailings basin.  MI 
is requesting an additional $1,000,000 of financing from Iron Range Resources to purchase and 
construct a 53,450 square foot fabric building at the Keewatin site.  The building will house the 
processing line and will allow MI to operate on a year round basis.  
  
MANAGEMENT TEAM: 
Chairman of the Board and CEO is Larry Lehtinen.  He joined MI in early 2008 when he became 
an investor in the company.  Mr. Lehtinen has over 30 years of mining industry experience while 
holding a variety of engineering and administrative positions with Inland Steel, Cleveland-Cliffs, 
and Steel Dynamics.  He also was instrumental in the development of the Mesabi Nugget project 
where he continues to serve as an independent consultant.  In addition, he has patented three 
mining related processes.  Mr. Lehtinen holds a minerals engineering degree from the University 
of Minnesota and a Masters of Business Administration from the University of Minnesota 
Duluth.  Mr. Lehtinen owns approximately 51% of the outstanding stock of the company. 
 
Al Fritz, the co-founder of MI and the inventor of the Ferrous Wheel magnetic separation 
process and machinery, serves as President.  Mr. Fritz is a retired mining engineer who spent 
much of his career in natural ore mining and processing.   
 
Other management team members and investors include Rod Hunt, a retired entrepreneur who, 
among other things, has mined precious metals in Alaska; Ed Shaughnessy, a former 
maintenance contractor for the mining industry who currently works for Hammerlund 
Constructors; Tom Hammerlund, owner of Hammerlund Construction and various other 
affiliated companies; Eugene Bergstrom, a retired employee of Otis Elevators; and, Greg 
Andrews, a retired city administrator and CPA who serves as Chief Financial Officer for the 
company.   
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 25 

MI is also working with various engineering companies on environmental permitting, plant 
design and raw material assessment.     
 
MARKET OPPORTUNITY: 
For nearly 100 years there has been mining on the Mesabi Iron Range, first to process the rich 
natural ore and more recently to process the lower grade taconite ore.  As part of the mining 
process, the ore is concentrated and the unwanted materials, or tailings, are taken out of the 
process and transported in slurry form to very large impoundment basins, where they are stored, 
and essentially abandoned.  There still are weakly magnetic iron particles within the tailings, but 
the process to recover those units has historically not been economical due to their relatively low 
market value in comparison to the cost of recovery.  Due to the rapid increase in iron unit pricing 
over the past several years, combined with enhanced technology, it now appears that it is 
economically feasible to begin reclaiming the iron units from the numerous tailings basins in 
northeastern Minnesota.  Iron ore prices are set annually by the world’s three biggest mining 
companies following negotiations with steel producers.  In 2008, the per ton price for iron ore 
increased approximately 65% over 2007, which is reflective of the increasing worldwide demand 
for steel.  Potential customers for Magnetation are both domestic and international.  The demand 
for iron ore concentrate is very strong and if MI can make the concentrate they can sell it. 
 
MI management indicates that within the existing tailings basins on the western Mesabi Range 
(within 25 miles of Nashwauk) there are 50 million plus metric tons of marketable iron units.  
This is a significant reserve that would require several decades to recover. 
 
MI is also proposing to develop wetlands on the processed tailings basins when they have 
completed the reclamation of the iron units.  On the Mesabi Chief #3 basin they propose to 
develop and sell approximately100 acres of wetlands.  Wetland credits are increasingly in 
demand as some of the larger proposed projects in the region begin their development stage 
(Essar Steel Minnesota and PolyMet are examples). 
 
A short history of the patented magnetic separation process and equipment is listed below: 

• The initial patent was filed in 1976 by Al Fritz.  Additional patents were filed in 1977 and 
1989.  These patents expired in February of 2008.   

• Fritz, via a company called Itasca Magnetics North, entered into an exclusive licensing 
agreement with Eriez Magnetics (a large mining industry equipment manufacturer in 
Pennsylvania) for the manufacture of the Ferrous Wheel™ magnetic separator machines.  
This exclusive agreement expired earlier this year.   

• In 1995, 16 Ferrous Wheel™ separators were installed at a mining operation in Mexico to 
reclaim 6 million tons of concentrate in a tailings basin.  The reclamation process was 
successfully completed in seven years and the wheels are no longer in service.  In May of 
2008, MI agreed to purchase three of the used Ferrous Wheel separators and received an 
exclusive one-year option to purchase an additional twelve of the separators.   

• Additional Ferrous Wheel™ separators are currently in service in Brazil. 
• In mid 2007 MI, Furin & Shea of Hibbing built a small pilot scale Ferrous Wheel™ for 

MI which was then installed at the Midland Standard Lab in Nashwauk for further testing 
of the local tailings and to further refine the magnetic separation process.  During this 
time potential customers observed the various test runs.  Based on the results of the test 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 26 

runs, various improvements were made to the separation process, and MI filed a process 
patent application in April of 2008. 

 
COLLATERAL REVIEW: 
The proposed $1,000,000 of debt financing will be subordinate, in regard to collateral, to the 
$3,000,000 of previously approved debt by Iron Range Resources and the Minnesota Minerals 
21st Century Fund.  On the surface, the value of the proposed collateral, at best, provides only 
nominal protection.  The land itself has limited market value as it sits right now, but it could 
prove to be very valuable as future wetlands should the company be successful with its business 
plan.  The value of the 3 million plus tons of iron units located at the Keewatin basin site have 
significant value if it can be processed and sold as projected.   
 
To compensate Iron Range Resources for the upfront risk on this loan, MI has agreed to pay a 
royalty of $0.50 per dry metric tonne of concentrate on the first 5 million tons of concentrate 
produced and shipped.  This is in addition to the royalty of $1.00 per dry metric tonne that Iron 
Range Resources will receive as part of the prior financing on this project. 
 
PAST IRON RANGE RESOURCES HISTORY: 
In June of 2008, the Iron Range Resources board approved two $1,000,000 direct loans to MI.  
These loans were closed on October 17, 2008. 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 27 

 
American Peat Technology, LLC 

Bank Participation Loan Program 
 

APPLICANT: 
American Peat Technology, LLC 
 
PRINCIPAL(S):  
Thomas Eberhardt, CEO 
 
BRIEF PROJECT DESCRIPTION:   
American Peat Technology, LLC (APT), was formed in 2003 by a number of investors 
and former employees of the insolvent Peat Technologies Corp.  APT purchased all of 
Peat Technologies assets and intellectual properties and began producing powdered and 
granulated peat for the seed innoculant industry.  The products serve as a carrier for the 
nitrogen-fixing Rhizobia bacteria to enhance the growth of legume crops, particularly, 
soybeans.  There is currently no domestic competition in this market.  APT is outgrowing 
its current facility and must expand to meet market demands.  This project consists of an 
expansion of its facility to allow for growth and development of additional products.    
 
PROJECT COST:   
$858,518    
 
PROJECT BREAKDOWN:   
Security State Bank of Aitkin (20 years, negotiated rate)  $412,500 
Iron Range Resources (20 years, formula rate)  $150,000 
Equity  $296,018 
Total $858,518  
 
COLLATERAL:   
Shared first mortgage on the subject real estate.  Personal guaranty of Tom Eberhardt. 
 
JOBS:   
9 full-time jobs created with wages of $12.50 to $22/hr. plus benefits. 
 
CONTINGENCIES:   
None. 
 
TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS:   
Approved October 20, 2008 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 28 

 
FUNDING AUTHORIZATION:   
Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund:  This project is authorized under 
the provisions of the Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund Act 
(Minnesota Statutes sections 298.291-298.298) pertaining to expenditures of Douglas J. 
Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund monies for economic development projects in 
that these statutes authorize small business development loans to private enterprises for 
the purposes of job creation and economic development within the Taconite Assistance 
Area defined in Minnesota Statutes Section 273.1341.   
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 
American Peat Technology, LLC (APT) was formed in August 2003 by investors and former 
employees of the insolvent Peat Technologies Corporation.  APT purchased all of Peat 
Technologies Corp’s assets and intellectual properties, new equipment was built, and the plant 
started producing granular and powdered peat for sale to the seed innoculant industry.   
 
APT is also developing new products and pursuing new markets.  From 2005 to 2007, product 
sales have increased by 30%.  Continued growth is limited by the capacity of its current facility.   
 
The proposed project is an 8,500 square foot building expansion that will allow the company to 
continue to grow.   
 
MANAGEMENT TEAM: 
Tom Eberhardt, who currently serves as President and CEO of APT, also serves as 
president/owner of TeeMark Corporation.  He’s also previously started three companies 
(Sweetwater Technology Corp., Blenheim Enterprises Inc., and Fabtech Corporation).  Along 
with his many business ventures, Tom holds a degree in Industrial Engineering, with an 
emphasis in Mechanical Engineering.  Elinor Eberhardt, a CPA, serves as the 
Secretary/Treasurer of APT.  Her experience includes computer programming and system 
analysis.  She holds degrees in Chemistry and Accounting.  Doug Green, who is a partner in 
APT, is involved in product development and is the operations manager for the company.   
 
MARKET OPPORTUNITY: 
The granular and powdered peat products (BioAPT) are produced for the niche market of the 
seed innoculant industry.  The peat serves as a carrier for the nitrogen-fixing Rhizobia bacteria 
used to enhance the growth and productivity of legume crops, particularly soybeans.  There 
currently is no domestic competition in this market.  The North American market is 
approximately 6.5 million pounds per year. 
 
APT is exploring new markets for BioAPT in other industries that grow microbes for industrial 
and environmental use, such as the biocontrol industry.  Its products are currently being tested by 
15 companies and universities.  This market has the potential to be significantly larger than the 
Rhizobia market.  The company expects to begin filling orders for this market in 2009. 
 
The ability of peat to remove metal contaminants from water and other liquids has been known 
for years.  Until recently, due to some physical characteristics of peat, there was no practical 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 29 

method to do this on a commercial scale.  APT has successfully addressed the issues and 
developed a product that has performed well in field tests and may be the best available 
technology for the removal of mercury from contaminated waters, such as those used in mining, 
taconite production and power generation. 
 
COLLATERAL REVIEW: 
Collateral will consist of a first position mortgage on the manufacturing facility shared pro-rata 
with the bank.  A current appraisal lists the property at $750,000 as completed.   
 
The loan also is personally guaranteed by Tom Eberhardt. 
 
PAST IRON RANGE RESOURCES HISTORY: 
Loans          Balance 
$100,000 participation loan to APT for equipment in 2006     $  57,317 
$255,000 loan to Aitkin Growth for TeeMark building in 1994    $  42,252 
$72,000 participation loan to TeeMark for equipment in 1999   $    7,525 
$251,000 loan to Aitkin Growth for TeeMark building expansion in 2001 $146,523 
 
All obligations have been handled satisfactorily. 
 
 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 30 

Taconite Economic Development Fund 
Action required:  Project approval requires a majority vote of the quorum present 

 
a) Hibbing Taconite Company 

 
b) Northshore Mining Company 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 31 

Hibbing Taconite Company 
 
 
 

Iron Range Resources 
P.O. Box 441 

4261 Highway 53 South 
Eveleth, Minnesota 55734-0441 
(218) 744-7400 • 800-765-5043 

Fax: (218)744-7403 
 

 
To: Sandy Layman 
 Commissioner 
 
From: Dan Jordan 
 Mining Programs Supervisor 
 
Date: October 11, 2012 
 
Re: HIBBING TACONITE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND PROJECTS  
 (PROD 2006, PAY 2007)  $2,445,674 
 
Minnesota Statutes 298.227, authorize grants to Minnesota’s taconite producers for acquisition 
of plant and stationary mining equipment and facilities for the producer or for research and 
development in Minnesota on new mining, or taconite, iron, or steel production technology, but 
only if the producer provides a matching expenditure to be used for the same purpose of at least 
50 percent of the distribution based on 14.7 cents per ton.  These funds are held in the Taconite 
Economic Development Fund. 
 
Effective for proposals for expenditures of money from the fund beginning May 26, 2007, the 
commissioner may not release the funds before the next scheduled meeting of the board.  If the 
board rejects a proposed expenditure, the funds must be deposited in the Taconite Area 
Environmental Protection Fund under sections 298.222 to 298.225. 
 
Hibbing Taconite Company (HTC) is eligible for a pay 2007, based on 2006 production, Taconite 
Economic Development fund refund of $2,445,674, subject to the company providing a match of 
$597,200 for a total project cost of $3,042,874. 
 
At the September 23, 2008, Iron Range Resources Board Meeting, certain Board members expressed their 
desire to see environmental projects included in each company’s TEDF submission.  Responding to these 
comments, Hibbing Taconite has revised its request to include an additional 14 projects that involve 
environmental monitoring, testing, mitigation or reduction in environmental impacts. 
 
Following are brief project summaries for the Hibbing Taconite TEDF Project requests. 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 32 

 
Project 1 
Mill #4 Discharge End Shell and Trunnion Total Cost $2,183,431 

 An excessive amount of erosion wear to the interior of the mill shell has occurred due to 
 fine material finding its way under the mill liners and “racing” around the shell.  
 Replacing this shell, along with a new design trunnion cast, will eliminate the interior 
step design which is the original cause of the wear.  This will restore the mill to full 
utility for the life of the mine, which will enable maximum production scenarios with all 
mills properly operating.  Since there is a long lead time of 50 weeks for replacement, a 
potential loss of at least 900,000 tons annually would occur if this mill were to break 
down. 

 
Project 2 
Mill #2 Gear Replacement Total Cost $1,545,653 

 The main gear on mill #2 was installed in 1981 and gear inspections have revealed 
problems with tooth wear, porosity issues and, recently, indications of spalling are 
increasing.  This recent spalling and cracking have increased the vulnerability of 
complete failure and the need for replacement.  Failure to replace this gear combined 
with a failure of the gear would result in a loss of at least 870,000 tons annually. 

 
Project 3 
Wetlands Mitigation Credits Total Cost $866,970 

This project will restore wetlands to provide HTC with Wetland Bank credits to be used 
for wetland mitigation.  This project involves the purchase and development of 196 acres 
of wetlands that will permit the company to disturb other wetlands as they expand their 
operation. 
 

Project 4 
Concentrator Dust Collector/Make up Air Upgrade Total Cost $231,629 

The concentrator building has been pressurized with a direct fired make-up air furnace to 
prevent the infiltration of cold air and dust into the work environment.  This upgrade will 
improve air quality as well as the work environment for all employees in this area. 

 
Project 5 
Pellet Plant Makeup Air Upgrades  Total Cost $43,484 

The pellet plant has been pressurized with a direct fired make-up air furnace to prevent 
the infiltration of cold air into the work environment.  This will improve the air quality as 
well as the work environment for all employees in this area. 

  
Project 6 
Hazardous Waste Storage Facility Total Cost $83,255 

The hazardous waste storage facility will provide a temporary storage area with a 
controlled environment for safely storing hazardous materials until they are permanently 
removed and properly disposed. 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 33 

Project 7 
Solvent-Based Parts Washer Replacement Total Cost $57,746 

The existing solvent-based parts washers were replaced with environmentally friendly 
recycling parts washers.  This will reduce hazardous waste generation rates.  The new and 
improved washers and solvents are not only environmental friendly but also non-abrasive 
to employees. 

 
Project 8 
Phase II Bentonite Dust Collector Total Cost $150,000 

The existing bentonite dust collection equipment in the pellet plant was replaced to 
improve reliability and efficiency.  This has provided a noticeable reduction in dust in the 
pellet plant. 
 

Project 9 
Furnace Burner Control Cameras Total Cost $120,000 

An infrared camera was installed in the pellet plant to provide improved temperature 
monitoring across the pellet bed.  This will allow the company to adjust fuel use and 
improve efficiency.  Lower fuel requirements result in both lower emissions and energy 
costs. 

 
Project 10 
Furnace Stack Gas Flow Monitors Total Cost $570,000 

Flow monitors were installed on the furnace stacks to measure gas flow rates.  Stack gas 
flow rates will be used to quantify mass emissions rates of NOx.  The monitoring results 
will be reported to regulating agencies and corrective action plans will be enacted to 
maintain compliance with emission regulations. 

 
Project 11 
Pellet Plant Wet Scrubber Modifications Total Cost $52,000 

The Pellet Plant Wet Scrubber was modified to allow for better control of the air 
differential pressure, a parametric operating limit used to verify wet scrubber collection 
efficiency.  These modifications will result in an increase in the scrubber’s operating 
efficiency as well as an improved work environment for employees.  

 
Project 12 
Reclamation and Fugitive Dust Control Total Cost $1,601,435 

This item contains the costs related to seeding, mulching and fertilizing of disturbed lands 
as well as application of liquid dust suppressants.  Fugitive dust control activities occur 
continuously throughout the year.  The fugitive dust liftoff is from open pits, haul roads 
and tailing basin operations. 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 34 

Project 13 
Testing, Monitoring and Reclamation Total Cost $117,080 

These expenditures are incurred as part of the environmental monitoring program for the 
following tasks:  sample collection, preparation and analyses, remediation equipment, 
supplies and materials and continuous monitoring expenses.  Examples of these activities 
are:   

1) Stack Testing.  7-Day NOx testing per requirement of HTC’s Administrative 
Order by Consent with the MPCA.  Results are reported to the MPCA. 

2) Petroleum leak site investigation and remediation.  Fuel oil recovery system 
currently is operational and zero oil leaks have occurred to date. 

3) Excavate settling pond and install overflow culvert to allow mitigation of iron 
ore precipitate (red stain) from a non-engineered tailings basin seep.  
Improved control and quality of runoff will be an outcome. 

 
Project 14 
MACT/BART Testing and Analysis Total Cost $103,154 

The Maximum Achievable Control Technology (MACT) Particulate Matter Test assists 
the MPCA in setting and fine-tuning its requirements for web scrubbers.  The Best 
Available Retrofit Technology (BART) Analysis is the 7-day NOx testing and analysis 
per the requirements of THC’s administrative Order by consent with the MPCA. 

 
Project 15 
ISO 14001 Total Cost $128,515 

ISO 14001 requires HTC’s commitment to prevention of pollution and continual 
improvement.  This item is the audit fee that pertains to registration to the international 
standard for the pollution prevention component.  The ISO 14001 recommendation is 
expected by the end of 2008. 

 
Project 16 
Mercury Research IMA/MNDNR Total Cost $30,166 

Material and equipment costs required to participate in the mercury reduction project 
being led by the DNR.  This project is working on ways to reduce and control mercury in 
the air emissions from taconite indurating furnaces.   



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 35 

Northshore Mining Company 
 
 
 

Iron Range Resources 
P.O. Box 441 

4261 Highway 53 South 
Eveleth, Minnesota 55734-0441 
(218) 744-7400 • 800-765-5043 

Fax: (218)744-7403 
 

 
To: Sandy Layman 
 Commissioner 
 
From: Dan Jordan 
 Mining Programs Supervisor 
 
Date: October 11, 2012 
 
Re: NORTHSHORE MINING TACONITE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND PROJECT 

(PROD 2006, PAY 2007)  $1,547,563 
 
Minnesota Statutes 298.227, authorize grants to Minnesota’s taconite producers for acquisition 
of plant and stationary mining equipment and facilities for the producer or for research and 
development in Minnesota on new mining, or taconite, iron, or steel production technology, but 
only if the producer provides a matching expenditure to be used for the same purpose of at least 
50 percent of the distribution based on 14.7 cents per ton.  These funds are held in the Taconite 
Economic Development Fund. 
 
Effective for proposals for expenditures of money from the fund beginning May 26, 2007, the 
commissioner may not release the funds before the next scheduled meeting of the board.  If the 
board rejects a proposed expenditure, the funds must be deposited in the Taconite Area 
Environmental Protection Fund under sections 298.222 to 298.225. 
 
Northshore Mining Company is eligible for a pay 2007, based on 2006 production, Taconite Economic 
Development Fund refund of $1,547,563, subject to the company providing a match of $359,734, for a 
total project cost of $1,907,297.  
 
At the September 23, 2008, Iron Range Resources Board Meeting, certain Board members expressed their 
desire to see environmental projects included in each company’s TEDF submission.  Responding to these 
comments, Northshore Mining has revised its request to include its water treatment plant expansion and 
environmental improvements to Furnace 5. 
 
Following are brief project summaries of the Northshore Mining TEDF Project requests. 



Iron Range Resources Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 27, 2008 

Page 36 

 
Project 1 
Reactivation of Concentrator Section 9 Total Cost $2,595,292 

 With the reactivation of Furnace 5 providing additional pellet production capacity, 
additional concentrate sections will be required, since the eleven existing concentrate 
sections do not have the capacity to supply Furnace 5 feed.  This requires the 
 refurbishment of two idle concentrator sections – sections 9 and 10.  These sections, 
 along with Furnace 5, have been idle since the early 80’s. 

 
 Furnace 5 provides an additional 800,000 tons of annual pellet capacity; each 
concentrator section provides 400,000 tons of concentrate supply capacity. 

 
Project 2 
Water Treatment Expansion Total Cost $2,362,242 

 Over the past 10 years the Mile Post 7 tailings basin water volume has not been 
decreasing as desired.  Approximately 9 billion gallons of water currently are stored in 
the tailings basin because the Water Treatment Plant (WTP) cannot treat and discharge 
sufficient water volumes to compensate for precipitation inflow.  Storing this large 
volume of water will make basin closure more difficult and increase the risk of dam 
failure.  This excess water in the basin increases the pond level, resulting in decreased 
safety and increased operational costs. 

 
 Over the past 6 years several major projects were conducted to improve the WTP 
performance; however, they have not fully cured the problem.  Expansion of the existing 
WTP by 50% will allow a maximum permitted discharge of 7.5 million gallons per day 
within the new discharge limit of 6.8 million fibers per liter.  The excess tailing basin 
water will be removed over 10 to 15 years. 
 
This project will save approximately $400,000 per year in costs that would be required to 
raise dams, dikes, roads and utilities. 

 
Project 3 
Furnace 5 Environmental Improvements  Total Cost $1,793,189 

 With the reactivation of Furnace 5, the following environmental capital expenditures 
were required. 
 
Furnace 5 Precipitators 501-503 – To control sulfur dioxide and particular matter. 
 
Furnace 5 Discharge Dust collector – This collector replaced an existing outdated 
collector that controls the dust at the back end of the furnace. 
 
Furnace 5 emission monitors – After the formal permit public comment period had 
closed for Furnace 5, there was a change in permit language by the MPCA to include the 
requirement for monitoring of the furnace gas discharge stacks.  The monitoring 
requirement is for continuous monitoring of both flow rate and NOx concentration from 
all three furnace 5 stacks.  To accomplish this, installation structures and permanent 
monitoring equipment are required. 


	Agenda
	Approval of the September 23, 2008, Minutes
	Iron Range Higher Education Account
	Iron Range Higher Education Committee Expenditures

	Taconite Area Environmental Protection Fund
	Residential Community Redevelopment Program Extension

	Douglas J. Johnson Economic Protection Trust Fund
	Magnetation, Inc.
	American Peat Technology, LLC
	Taconite Economic Development Fund
	Hibbing Taconite Company
	Northshore Mining Company


